
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 8 

Ref: SENF-UFO 

1595 Wynkoop Street 
DENVER, CO 80202·1129 

Phone 800-227-8917 
http://ww.v.epa.gov/region08 

AUG 23 2012 

CERTIFIED MAIL# 7005 0390 0000 4845 3619 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Kerry Smith, Owner 
Top Country Auto Sales 
605 3" Street 
Penrose, CO SI240 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

Re: Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
And Notice Of Opportunity For Hearing 
Docket No. SDWA-QS-2012-0045 

Enclosed is a Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, and Notice Of Opportunity For Hearing 
(Complaint) issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as authorized by the Safe Drinking 
Water Act (SDWA), 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2. The document describes how you, as owner ofTop Country 
Auto Sales have violated the SDWA and proposes both compliance requirements and the assessment of 
a civil penalty_ 

However, if you fully comply with the compliance order requirements in a timcly numner as sct 
out in the Complaint, EPA will evaluate the civil penalty factors at 42 U.S.c. § 300h-2(c)(4)(B), 
and may settle this case without the assessment of a eivil penalty, if appropriate. Please note that 
there are deadlines in the Complaint that must be followed. The Complaint is effective upon the receipt 
date, and you have thirty (30) calendar days to file an answer to dispute the contents of the Complaint. 

Also enclosed is a copy of the Rules ofPraclice that govern these proceedings, the required Public 
Notice associated with this Complaint and, in case you meet the criteria, an infonnation sheet about the 
Sma.!l Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act. 



If you have any technical questions, contact Britta Copt at the above address (with the mail code 8ENF ~ 
UFO) or by phone at (303) 312-6229. For legal questions, the attorney assigned to this matter is Jean 
Belille, who can be reached at the above address (with the mail code 8ENF-L) or by phone 
at (303) 312-6556. 

We urge your prompt attention to this matter. 

Enclosures: 

Sincerely, 

A~~ 
Assistant Regional Administrator 
Office of Enforcement, Compliance 

and Environmental Justice 

Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing 

Part 22 Rules of Practice 
Public Notice 
U.S. EPA Small Business Resources Fact Sheet 
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In the Matter of: 

UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 8 2012 AUG 23 All 8: ~O 
Docket No. snWA-OS-2012-0045 

Kerry Smith, Owner 
Top Country Auto Sales 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

PROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER, 
PENALTY COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF 
OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

Respondent. 

INTRODUCTION 

t. This Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for 
Hearing (complaint) is authorized by Congress in section 1423 of the Public Health Service Act, 
commonly known as the Safe Drinking Water Act (Act). 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2. The 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations authorized by the statute 8fe set out in part 
144 of title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), and violations of the statute, permits 
or EPA regulations constitute violations of the Act. The rules for this proceeding are the 
"Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment ofCivii Penalties, 
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders and the Revocation, Termination or 
Suspension of Penn its ("Rules of Practice")," 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which is enclosed. 

2. The undersigned EPA official has been properly delegated the authority to issue this 
complaint. 

3. EPA alleges that Kerry Smith (Respondent), owner of Top Country Auto Sales, has 
violated the regulations and therefore the Act, as more fully explained below. 

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING 

4. Respondent has the right to a public hearing before a presiding officer within the 
Agency to (1) disagree with any fact alleged by EPA in the complaint, (2) state the grounds for 
any legal defense or (3) disagree with the appropriateness of the proposed penalty. 

5. To disagree with the complaint and assert Respondent's right to a hearing, 
Respondent must file a written answer (and one copy) with the Regional Hearing Clerk (1595 
Wynkoop Street (8RC); Denver, Colorado 80202) within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving 
this complaint. The answer must clearly admit, deny or explain the factual allegations of the 
complaint, the grounds for any defense, the facts Respondent may dispute, and Respondent's 
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specific request for a public hearing. Please see section 22.15 of the Rules of Practice for a 
complete description of what must be in the answer. FAILURE TO FILE AN ANSWER AND 
REQUEST A HEARING WITHIN TIDRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS MAY WAIVE 
RESPONDENT'S RIGHT TO DISAGREE WITH THE ALLEGATIONS OR PROPOSED 
PENALTY, AND RESULT IN A DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ASSESSMENT OF 
PENALTY UP TO THE MAXIMUM AUTHORIZED BY THE ACT. 

SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS 

6. EPA encourages discussing whether cases can be settled through informal settlement 
conferences. If Respondent wants to pursue the possibility of settling this matter, or has any 
other questions, contact Jean Belille, Enforcement Attorney; at (303) 312-6556 or at the 
following address: 

Jean Belille (Mail Code 8ENF-L) 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Please note that calling Ms. Belille or requesting a settlement conference does NOT delay 
the running of the thirty (30) day period for filing an answer and requesting a hearing. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

The following general allegations apply to all times relevant to this action and to each 
violation alleged in this complaint: 

7. Respondent is a "person" as defined in the Act, and is therefore subject to the 
requirements of the statute and/or regulations. 42 U.S.C. § 300f(12). 

8. Respondent owns and/or operates the facility known as Top Country Auto Sales, 
located at 605 3rd Street, Penrose, Colorado ("facility"). 

9. On October, 24, 2011, authorized EPA employees entered the facility, with consent, 
to inspect it for compliance with the law. This inspection showed that the facili ty operates a 
motor vehicle maintenance area with one floor drain. The floor drain leads to a septic system. 

10. Based on the inspection described above, Respondent owns and/or operates a Class V 
Motor Vehicle Waste Disposal Well. 

11. Respondent's disposal system, as identified in the inspection above, is classified as a 
"Class V Injection Well" as defmed by 40 C.F.R. §§I44.6, 144.81 , and 146.5. Respondent is 
subject to applicable requirements of 40 C.F.R. §§ 124, 144 and 146. 

12. Lying beneath Respondent's disposal well are underground sources of drinking water 
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(USDWs), including but not limited to, the Dakota-Cheyenne aquifer. 

13. Respondent is in violation of: 

(a) 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.12(a) and 144.82(a)(I) by owning, operating or maintaining a Class 
V disposal well which, through injection activity, allows the movement of fluid containing any 
contaminant into underground sources of drinking water, if the presence of that contaminant may 
cause a violation of any primary drinking water regulation or may otheIVIise adversely affect the 
health of persons; and 

(b) 40 C.F.R. § 144.88(b) for operating a motor vehicle waste disposal well after the 
January 1,2007 ban of all motor vehicle waste disposal wells. 

Respondent's operation of the well is in violation oftbe EPA regulations and is, 
therefore, in violation of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2 (c)(I). 

PROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER 

14. Respondent shall: 

(a) within thirty (30) calendar days of Respondent's receipt of this complaint, submit to 
EPA, in writing, a schedule for permanently closing the disposal well in the motor vehicle 
maintenance area and a plan for alternative disposal of the waste. If the closure includes the use 
of a self-contained holding tank, the plan must address the specific type, specifications and size 
of tank to be installed. EPA will promptly review the proposed plan and either approve it or 
provide Respondent with written comments; 

(b) within sixty (60) calendar days of the receipt of this complaint, permanently close the 
disposal well; and 

(c) within thirty (30) calendar days of completing this work, provide EPA with 
subsequent documentation of the closure. 

15. Respondent shall submit all documentation to: 

Britta Copt (Mail Code 8ENF-UFO) 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY 

16. For an administrative proceeding, the Act authorizes the assessment of a civil penalty 
of up to $16,000 per day, for each violation of the Act, up to a maximum of$I77,500. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 300h-2 (c)(1). The Act requires EPA to take into account appropriate factors in assessing a 
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civil penalty, including the seriousness of the violations, the economic benefit resulting from the 
violations, any history of such violations, any good.faith efforts to comply with the requirements, 
the economic impact on the violator, and such other matters as justice may require. 

17. As required by the Act, prior to the assessment of a civil penalty, EPA will provide 
public notice of the proposed penalty and reasonable opportunity for the public to comment on 
the matter and present evidence in the event a hearing is held 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2 (c)(3)(B). 

Date: AIIG 2 a 2G12 BY~~ dreWMGaydQS 
Assistant Regional Administrator 
Office of Enforcement, Compliance 

And Environmental Justice 
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In the Matter of: 
Dock.tNa.: 

Kcrry Smith 
SDWA-oS-2012-o045 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the original and one copy of the PROPOSED 
COMPLIANCE ORDER, PENALTY COMPLAINT, AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR 
HEARING with the Consolidated Rules of Practice (40 C.F.R. Pan 22), a Public Notice, and the 
U.S. EPA Small Business Resources Fact Sheet were hand-carried to the Regional Hearing 
Clerk, EPA Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop Street; Denver, Colorado 80202·1129, and that a true copy 
of the same was sent via Certified Mail to: 

Kerry Smith, Owner 
Top Country Auto Sales 
6053" Street, 
Penrose, CO 81240 

~/'J3I').o 12-
Date 
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u.s. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
PROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER, PENALTY COMPLAINT, 

AND 
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

AGAINST 
KERRY SMITH, OWNER 

TOP COUNTRY AUTO SALES 
FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH 

UNDERGROUND INJECTION CONTROL REGULATIONS 

PURPOSE OF PUBLIC NOTICE 

The purpose of this notice is to sol icit WTitten comments on a Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty 
Complaint, and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (complaint) [Docket No. SDW A-08-20 120045 J that 
Region 8 of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposes to issue to Kerry 
Smith, Owner, Top Country Auto Sales, for alleged violations at the facility located in Penrose, 
Colorado. The complaint alleges violations of the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the 
regulations detailing the requirements of the SDWA's Underground Injection Control (VIC) program. 
These regulations govern the injection of fluids that may endanger an underground source of drinking 
water (USDW). The complaint proposes compliance requirements and monetary penalties for the 
alleged violations. 

The EPA desires to receive written comments from any interested party having knowledge of the alleged 
violations or who can provide any information useful to ensure that the complaint is appropriate. EPA 
will review and consider all comments received, and wi ll thereafter detennine whether to modify or 
withdraw the complaint. 

BACKGROUND 

Part C of the SDWA (40 U.S.C. §300h et seq) requires the EPA to regulate underground injection of 
fluid through wells to assure that underground sources of drinking water (USDWs) are not endangered. 
Section 1421 of the SDWA (40 U.S.C. §300h) requires EPA to administer UIC programs in States that 
do not have approved State UIC programs. Regulation of the UIC Class V Program has not been 
delegated to the State of Colorado; therefore, EPA administers the program in accordance with title 40 
of the Code of Federal Regulations (40 C.F.R.) parts 124, 144, 146, 147, and 148. 

The Class V motor vehicle waste disposal well which is the subject of this complaint, is located at 605 
3rd Street, Penrose, Colorado. A Class V injection well, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.6 and 146.5, is a 
shallow injection well that injects fluids into or above a US OW. 



The complaint alleges that Kerry Smith, Owner, Top Country Auto Sales, is in violation ofUIC 
regulations and is subject to appropriate penalties for failing to prevent movement of fluids into a 
USDW that may cause a violation ofa primary drinking water regulation under 40 C.F.R. part 142 or 
otherwise adversely affect the health of persons and operating a banned well. The complaint cites that 
EPA may assess an administrative civil penalty of up to $16,000 per day, for each violation of the Act, 
up to a maximum of $177 ,500 and proposes certain compliance measures, including the pennanent 
closure of the well. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Written comments on the complaint are encouraged and will be accepted at the address listed below for 
a period of thirty (30) calendar days after the publication of this notice. Written comments submitted by 
the public as well as information submitted by Kerry Smith, Owner, Top Country Auto Sales, will be 
available for public review as part of the Administrative Record, subject to the provisions of law 
restricting the disclosure of confidential information. Kerry Smith, Owner, Top Country Auto Sales, 
may request a hearing, Any person submitting written comments will be notified of and has a right to 
participate in such a hearing, The complaint and the Administrative Record are available for review 
between 9:00 a.m, and 4:00 p,m, at the address listed below. It is recommended that those wishing to 
view the Administrative Record call Jean BeliBe, Enforcement Attorney, Legal Enforcement Program, 
EPA Region 8, at (303) 312-6556 before visiting the EPA Region 8 offices. Please submit written 
comments to: 

Tina Artemis (8RC) 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Any person interested in receiving their own copy of this or any future public notice ofa UIC 
administrative action can call Britta Copt in the UIC program, EPA Region 8, at (303) 312-6229. 

THE DECISION 

EPA will review and consider all public comments received on the public notice and will thereafter 
determine whether to modify or withdraw the complaint. If the complaint is ·revised, copies shall be 
provided to all parties and to all members of the public who have commented. 

Darcy O'Connor, Acting Director 
UICIFIFRNOPA Technical Enforcement Program 
U.S . EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202 



"" ER~unile d Sillies ... _~ Environment.1 Protealon 
,,.. Agency 

Office of Enfo rcement and Compliance Ass urance (220 I A) 
EPA-300-F-\ \ -006 June 20 \\ 

U.S. EPA Small Business Resources i 

Information Sheet ' 
Tht: Uni (...:d Stutes Environmcntal Protl.!c tion Agency pl'ovidcs an array o f resources, inc luding workshops, training 
s!;ssions, hotJines, wcbsitcs an d guides, to help small businesses un derstand an d comply with federal and stale 
environmental laws. In addition to help ing small businesses understand their environmental obligl.ltions and 
improve compliance. these resources will also help such businesses find cost-effective ways 10 comply through 
poll ution prevention techniques and innovative technologies. 

EPA's Small Business Websites 

Small Business Envi ronmental Homepage - www.smallb iz-env irowcb.org 

Small Busincs::; Gateway - www. cpa .gov/::;mall busincss 

EPA'::; Small Bus iness Ombudsman - www.l!pa.gov/sboor 1-800-368-5888 

EPA'::; Com pli.lncc Assistance 
HOIIICI)age 
www.cpa.g.ov/cumpliam:c1as~i~tancd 

businC:\:i.hlml 

This page is a gateway to industry 
and slatule-sp l;:eific environmental 
resources, from extensive web-based 
information 10 ho\lines lind compliance 
tlssislance specialists. 

EPA's Com plilllll"c Assisl:lIIl'l' Ceuters 
1\ II w.al'~ i .~lanc\:c~·ntcr~.nct 

EPA's Compliance Assistance Centers 
provide information targeted to 
indllstril:s with 111an)l small businesses. 
Thl:Y were developed in pal1nership 
wilh industry. un iversities and other 
feder-II and st<lte agencies. 

AgricultuTl." 
www.epa.gov/agricuJturel 

Automot ive Recycling 
www.ccarccnlt:r.org 

Autolliutiw Service and Repair 
W\vw.ccJJ'-gro:nlinkorgor l-R88-GRN-LINK 

C la' mkal M:llluf:l cturin g 
www.ehemu[lianee.org 

Co ns tr uction 
www.cicacenter.orgor [·734·995-4911 

Educat ion 
www.cumpusen:.()rg 

Food Process ing 
www.fpcac.org 

~Icalthcare 

www.herccnter.org 

Local Governm ent 
www.lgean .org 

Metal FiniShin g 
www.nmfrc.org 

I~aints and C O:lI ings 
www.paintcenh:r.org 

1)rinted Wirillg HOlIl'd Manuf:lcturin g 
www.pwbrc.org 

PI' jnling 
www.pneac.org 

Ports 
www.portcompiiance.org 

U.S. Border Compliance and 
Im parl/Export Iss ues 
www.bordcrcenter.org 

Hotlincs, Hclpl incs and 
Clc;\ ri nghouscs 
w\.vw. epll.gov/cp<I ho me/hotl inc. h un 

EPA sponsors many free hotlincs and 
clearinghouses that provide convenient 
assistance regarding environmenlal 
requirements. Some examples a rc: 

Antimicrobial Information Hotline 
info-antimicrobial@cpa.gov or 
1-703-308-6411 

C lean Air Technology Center (CATC) 
Info-line 
www.cpa.gov/ttn.lcatc or 1-919-54 \ -0800 

Emcrgency Planning and Community 
Right-To- Know Act 
www.epa.gov/superfundlresources/ 
infoccnter/epcra.hlm or 1-800-424-9346 

E PA Imported Vehiclcs and En gine:>: 
Public lIelpline 
www.epll.gov/otllq/ill1ports or 
734-214-4100 

National Pes ticide Information C entcr 
www.npic.orst.edulor 1-800·858-7378 

National Res ponse Center Hotline -
to report oil and ha7ArC1ous substance spills 
www. nrc.uscg.mil or 1-800·414 -8802 

I' ollution Prevention InfOl'lllation 
C learinghouse (PPIC) 
www.epa.gov/opptintr/ppic o r 
1-101-566-0799 

Safe Drinking Water Hotline 
www.epa.gov/safewater/hot]inclindex. 
hlml or 1-800-426-4791 

Str:.ltospheric Olonc l'l'otcction Hotlin e 
·wvlw.cpa.gov/ozone or 1-800-296- 1996 

. Ollice of Enforcement and Compliance Assurunce: http://ww\.\.qtJ..gllv/compliuncc 



! u. S. EPA Small Business Resources 

Toxic Substan ces Control Act (TSeA) H otline 

l~ca-hotline@cpa.gov or 1-202-554-1404 

WctllllHls Inro rm :l tion I-Iclpti nc 
www.cpa.gov/owow/wetlands/wctline.htmlor 1-800-832-7828 

State lllH.i Tribal Web-Based Resources 

StIl le R CSOIlI'CC Loca tors 
www.envcap.orglstatctools 

The Locators provide state-specific contacl';, regulations and 
resources covering the major environmental laws. 

State Small Busint's.s Environmental Assistance Programs 
(S Il F:A Ps) 
www.slllallbi7.-cl1virowcb.org 

Stute SBEAPs help small businesses and assistance providers 
understand environmental requirements and sustainable 
business practices through workshops, trainings and site visits. 
The website is a central point for sharing resources betwecn 
EPA and stalt::S. 

EPA's Tribal Co mplian ce Ass istan ce Cente r 
www.epa.gov/trlbalcomplianeelindex. 11 t III I 

The Center provides material to Tribes on environmental 
.qcwardship and regulations that m ight apply to tribal 
government operatiolls . 

F.: PA's Tribal Porta l 
www.epa.gov/tribalportal/ 

The Portal helps users locate tribal-related infOnllation within 
EPA and other federal agencies. 

EPA Compliance Incentives 
EPA provides incentives ror environmental compliance. By 
p<lrtieipating in compliance assistance programs or voluntarily 
disclosing and promptly correcting violations berorc an 
enforcement action Ims been initiated. businesses may be 
eligible ror penalty waivers or reductions. EPA has two such 

policies that may apply to sillall businesses: 

EPA's Small Busin ess Co mplian ce Po licy 

www.epa.govlcompli:mcC/inccntives/smaJlbusincsS/index.html 

This Policy offers small businesses spccial incentives to come 

into compliance voluntllrily. 

EPA's Audit Policy 
www.epa.gov/eompliunce/ineentiveslauditing/auditpoli cy. hIm I 

June 2011 

The Policy provides incentives to all businesses that 

voluntarily discover, promptly disclose and expeditiously 

correct their noncompJi:mec 

Commellting on Fedenll En forccmcnt Actions a nd 
Com plillll CC Activiti es 
The Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act 

(SBREFA) established a SAREFA Omhudsman and 10 Regional 

Fairness Boards to receive comments from small businesses 
about federal agenc)' enrorcement actions. If you believe that 
you fall within the Small Business Administration's definition 

of a sllHlI! business (based on your North Arn<.:l·ican Industry 
Classilication System designation, number or employees or 

nllilual rel.:eipts. as defined al 13 C.F.R. 121.::!OI , in Illost cases. 

this Illeans a business with 500 or fewer employees). ::Jlld wish 

to cOlllment 011 federal ellfo rce!llcn[ and (ompliance a(livitics. 

call the SBREFA Ombudsman's toll-frec number al 1·RX8-
REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247). or go to their weosile at www. 

s b<l. gov I 0111 budslll an . 

Every small business that is th..: subject of an cnforcement or 

compl ianee aClion is enlitled to C01llment on the Agency's Dctions 
without rear ofretaliatioll. EPA employees arc prohibitcd from 
using enforcement or any other 1lleans ofrctfllifllion agllinsl .my 
member of the regulated community in response to comments 

made under SI3RI.:TA. 

Your Du ty to Co mpl y 
!f you receive compliance assistance or submit a commcnt 

to the S[iREFA Ombudsman 01" Regional FlI irness Hoards, 

you still have the duty to comply with the Jaw, including 

providing time ly responses to EPA information rcquesl.', 

admin istrative or civil complaints. other enforcement actions 

or communications. The assistance information and comment 
proccsscs do 110t give you any ncw rights or defenses in any 

enlorccment action. These processes also do not arfect EPA' s 
obligation to protcct public hcalth or the envirOIl!llt:nlundt:r any 

or the ellvironmelllul slatules i! ent("lI"et:s. including the right \("1 

take emergency remedial or emergcney rcsponse actions when 

appropriate. Those deci5ions will be based on tbe fact s ill each 

situation . Thc SBREFA Ombudsman llnd Fairness B()ard~ do 

not participate in resolving EPA's ·..:nforccmcilt u(lions . Also. 

remember that to preserve your rights, you need Lo comply with 

a1\ niles gOVl.::rning the cnrorcement process. 

E PA i." di.'·.\"l!lIIil1alillg thi.~ ill/ormatioll 10 you without making 
fI determ in ll fion 111M your h/(~·ille.H· or organizatio/l t.\· {/ sfllull 
husille.ls (/.,. defined hy Sectioll 222 of tlte Sma/! !IlIsil/cs.\· 
Regula/my E nfo rcemel1 t F{/imc.\".~ Act or re/atell prm'i.,·illll.,·. 
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,/ 
§21.13 

approve or disapprove the S~te issued 
statement, in accordance With the re
quirements of § 21.5. . 

(2) The Regional Adm1nistrator will 
periodically reView State program per
formance. In the event of State pro
gra.m deficiencies the Regtonal Admin
istrator will notify the State of such 
deficiencies. . 

(3) During that period that any · 
State's program is Class1f1ed as defi- ' 
aient, statements issued by a State 
shall also be sent to the Regional Ad
ministrator for review. The Regional 

. Administrator shall notify the State, 
the appl1cant, and the SBA of a.ny de
termination subsequently made, in ac
cordance With §21.5, on any such state
ment. 

(1) If within 60 days after notice of 
such, defiCiencies has been provided, 
the State has not taken corrective ef
forts. and if the deficienc1es signifi
cantly affect the conduct of the pro
gram, the Regio~al Administrator, 
after sufficient notice has been pro
vided to the Regional Director of SBA, 
shall withdraw the approval of the 
State program. 

(11) .AIJ.y State whose program is with
drawn and whose deficiencies have been 
corrected may later reapply as pro
vided in §21.12(a). 

(g) Funds a.ppropriated under section 
106 of the Act may be utilized by a 
State agency authorized to receive 
such funds in conducting tb1s program: 

§ 21.13 Effect of certification upon a u-
thority to enforce applicable s tand
ards . . 

The certification by EPA or a State 
for SEA Loan purposes in no way con
stitutes a determination by EPA or the 
State that the facilities certified (a) 
will be conStructed within the · time 
specified by an applicable standard or 
(b) will be constructed and installed in 
accordance with the plans and speci
fications submitted in the application, 
will be opera.ted and maintained prop.. 
erly. or will be applied to process 
wastes which are the same as described 
in the application. The certification in 
no way constitutes a waiver by EPA or 
a State of its authority to take appro
priate· enforcement action against the 
owner or operator of such facilities for 
violations of an applicable standard: 

1ST Pc..i-~ . 
40 CFR Ch. I (7-H)8 Edillon) 

PART 22-CONSOLIDATED RULES 
OF PRACTICE GOVERNING THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT OF 
CIVIL PENALTIES AND THE REV
OCATION/TERMINATION OR SUS
PENSION OF PERMITS 

Subpart A-General 

Seo. 
22.1 Scope of this part. 
22.2 Use of number a.nd gender. 
22.3 Definitions. 
22.4 Powers and duties of the Environ

mental Appeals Board, Regional Jud1cial 
Officer and PreSiding Omcer; disquali
fication, withdra.wal, and reassiknment. 

22.5 Filing, service, and form of all rUed' 
documents; business cOi1!1dentlal1ty 
olaims. 

22.6 Filing and service of rulings, orders and 
deCisions . 

22.7 Computation and extension of time. 
22.8 Ex paTte discussion of proceeding. 
22.9 Examination of documents filed. 

Subpart B-Parties and Appearances 

22.10 Appearances. · 
22.11 Intervention and non-party briefs. 
22.12 Consolidation and severance. 

Subpart C-Prehearing Procedures 

22.13 Commencement of a proceeding. 
22.14 Complaint. 
22.16 Answer to the complaint. 
22.16 Motions . 
22.17 Default. 
22.18 Quick resolution; settlement;. alter

na.tive dispute resolution. 
22.19 Prehea.ring information exchange; pre

hearing conference; other discovery. 
22.20 Accelerated decision; 'deoision to dis

miss. 

. Subpart D-Hearing Procedures 

22.21 AsSignment of PreSiding Officer; 
scheduling the hearing. 

22.22. Evidenoe. 
22.23 ObjectioDs and offers of proof. 
22.24 Burden ",of presentation; burden of per

suasion; preponderance of the evidence 
standard. 

22.25 F1l1ng the transcript. 
22.26 Proposed f1nd1ngs, conolusions, and 

order. 

Subpart E-Initlal Decision and Motion fo 
Reopen a HE!9ring 

. 22:27 Initial deoision. 
22.28 Motion to reopen a hearing. 
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